
 

 
County Hall, New Road, Oxford, OX1 1ND 

www.oxfordshire.gov.uk  Media Enquiries 01865 323870 
 

 
To: Members of the Shareholder Committee (Cabinet Committee) 
 

Notice of a Meeting of the Shareholder Committee 
(Cabinet Committee) 

 

Tuesday, 24 February 2026 at 3.00 pm 
 

Room 2&3 - County Hall, New Road, Oxford OX1 1ND 
 

If you wish to view proceedings online, please click on this Live Stream Link. 
 

 
Martin Reeves 
Chief Executive February 2026 
 

Committee Officer: Democratic Services 
email:committeesdemocraticservices@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

 
Membership 

Councillors 

 
Liz Leffman Leader of the Council 

Neil Fawcett Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member 
for Resources 

Tim Bearder Cabinet Member for Adults 

Andrew Gant Cabinet Member for Transport Management 

Sean Gaul Cabinet Member for Children and Young People 

Kate Gregory Cabinet Member for Public Health and Inequalities 

Jenny Hannaby Cabinet Member for Community Wellbeing and 
Safety 

Ben Higgins Cabinet Member for Future Economy and Innovation 

Dan Levy Cabinet Member for Finance, Property and 

Transformation 

Judy Roberts Cabinet Member for Place, Environment and Climate 
Action 

 
The Agenda is attached.  Decisions taken at the meeting will become effective at the end 

of the working day on Friday 27 February unless called in by that date for review by the 
appropriate Scrutiny Committee. Copies of this Notice, Agenda and supporting papers 
are circulated to all Members of the County Council. 

http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/
https://oxon.cc/SC24022026


 

 
County Hall, New Road, Oxford, OX1 1ND 

www.oxfordshire.gov.uk  Media Enquiries 01865 323870 
 

 

AGENDA 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence  
 

2. Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 7 - 8) 
 
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 9 December 2025 and to receive any 

information arising from them.  
 

3. Declarations of Interest  
 
See guidance note below.  

 

4. Questions from County Councillors  
 
Any county councillor may, by giving notice to the Proper Officer by 9 am two working 
days before the meeting, ask a question on any matter in respect of the Shareholder 

Committee’s delegated powers.  
 

The number of questions which may be asked by any councillor at any one meeting is 
limited to two (or one question with notice and a supplementary question at the meeting) 
and the time for questions will be limited to 30 minutes in total. As with questions at 

Council, any questions which remain unanswered at the end of this item will receive a 
written response.  

 
Questions submitted prior to the agenda being despatched are shown below and will be 
the subject of a response from the appropriate Committee Member or such other 

councillor or officer as is determined by the Committee Member, and shall not be the 
subject of further debate at this meeting. 

 

5. Petitions and Public Address  
 

Members of the public who wish to speak at this meeting can attend the meeting in 
person or ‘virtually’ through an online connection.  

 
To facilitate ‘hybrid’ meetings we are asking that requests to speak or present a petition 
are submitted by no later than 9am four working days before the meeting. Requests to 

speak should be sent to committeesdemocraticservices@oxfordshire.gov.uk  
 

If you are speaking ‘virtually’, you may submit a written statement of your presentation to 
ensure that your views are taken into account. A written copy of your statement can be 
provided no later than 9am 2 working days before the meeting. Written submissions 

should be no longer than 1 A4 sheet. 
 

http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/
mailto:committeesdemocraticservices@oxfordshire.gov.uk


 

6. Approval of 2026/27 Enterprise Oxfordshire Business Plan (Pages 
9 - 26) 

 
Cabinet Member: Future Economy and Innovation 
Forward Plan Ref: 2026/021 

Contact: Sadie Patamia, Corporate Governance Manager – Enterprise Oxfordshire 
(Sadie.Patamia@oxfordshire.gov.uk)  

 
Report by Director of Economy and Place (SC6). 

 

To approve the Enterprise Oxfordshire Business Plan for 2026/27. 
 
The Shareholder Committee is RECOMMENDED to:  
 

a) Approve the 2026/27 Enterprise Oxfordshire Business Plan version 1 and 

indicative budget for 2027/28; and  

 
b) Note that a version 2 of the Business Plan will be developed following 

the Economic Strategy.   

 

 
 

 
 

mailto:Sadie.Patamia@oxfordshire.gov.uk


 

 
County Hall, New Road, Oxford, OX1 1ND 

www.oxfordshire.gov.uk  Media Enquiries 01865 323870 
 

Councillors declaring interests  
 

General duty  

You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the item 

on the agenda headed ‘Declarations of Interest’ or as soon as it becomes apparent to 

you.  

 

What is a disclosable pecuniary interest?  

Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your employment; sponsorship (i.e. payment for 

expenses incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards your 

election expenses); contracts; land in the Council’s area; licenses for land in the 

Council’s area; corporate tenancies; and securities. These declarations must be 

recorded in each councillor’s Register of Interests which is publicly available on the 

Council’s website.  

 

Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member 

her or himself but also those member’s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with 

as husband or wife or as if they were civil partners. 

 

Declaring an interest  

Where any matter disclosed in your Register of Interests is being considered at a 

meeting, you must declare that you have an interest. You should also disclose the nature 

as well as the existence of the interest. If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after 

having declared it at the meeting you must not participate in discussion or voting on the 

item and must withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is discussed.  

 

Members’ Code of Conduct and public perception  

Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Members’ Code 

of Conduct says that a member ‘must serve only the public interest and must never 

improperly confer an advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself’ and 

that ‘you must not place yourself in situations where your honesty and integrity may be 

questioned’.  

 

Members Code – Other registrable interests  

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to the financial interest or 

wellbeing of one of your other registerable interests then you must declare an  interest. 

You must not participate in discussion or voting on the item and you must withdraw from 

the meeting whilst the matter is discussed.  

 

Wellbeing can be described as a condition of contentedness, healthiness and happiness; 

anything that could be said to affect a person’s quality of life, either positively or 

negatively, is likely to affect their wellbeing. 

Other registrable interests include:  

a) Any unpaid directorships 

http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/


- 2 - 
 

 

b) Any body of which you are a member or are in a position of general control or 

management and to which you are nominated or appointed by your authority. 

c) Any body (i) exercising functions of a public nature (ii) directed to charitable 

purposes or (iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public 

opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union) of which you are a 

member or in a position of general control or management. 

 

Members Code – Non-registrable interests  

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest or 

wellbeing (and does not fall under disclosable pecuniary interests), or the financial 

interest or wellbeing of a relative or close associate, you must declare the interest.  

 

Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects your own financial interest or wellbeing, 

a financial interest or wellbeing of a relative or close associate or a financial interest or 

wellbeing of a body included under other registrable interests, then you must declare the 

interest.  

 

In order to determine whether you can remain in the meeting after disclosing your 

interest the following test should be applied:  

Where a matter affects the financial interest or well-being:  

a) to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of 

inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision and;  

b) a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it 

would affect your view of the wider public interest. 

 

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at 

the meeting. Otherwise you must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter 

and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

SHAREHOLDER COMMITTEE (CABINET COMMITTEE) 
 
MINUTES of the meeting held on Tuesday, 9 December 2025 commencing at 4.30 

pm and finishing at 4.36 pm 

 
Present: 

 

 

Voting Members: Councillor Liz Leffman – in the Chair 
 

 Councillor Neil Fawcett (Deputy Chair) 
Councillor Tim Bearder 

Councillor Andrew Gant 
Councillor Sean Gaul 
Councillor Kate Gregory 

Councillor Ben Higgins 
Councillor Judy Roberts 

 
Officers: 
 

Lorna Baxter (Executive Director of Resources and 
Section 151 Officer), Anita Bradley (Director of Law & 

Governance and Monitoring Officer), Colm Ó 
Caomhánaigh (Democratic Services Manager), Nicholas 

Glover (Head of Future Economy and Innovation), Sadie 
Patamia (Corporate Governance Manager – Enterprise 
Oxfordshire), Martin Reeves (Chief Executive) 

 
Agenda Item Officer Attending 

  
 
The Cabinet Committee considered the matters, reports and recommendations 

contained or referred to in the agenda for the meeting [, together with a schedule of 
addenda tabled at the meeting/the following additional documents:] and agreed as 

set out below.  Copies of the agenda and reports [agenda, reports and 
schedule/additional documents] are attached to the signed Minutes. 
 

 

40 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
(Agenda No. 1) 
 

Apologies were received from Councillors Hannaby and Levy. 
 

41 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
(Agenda No. 2) 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 13 November 2025 were approved and signed 

by the Chair as a correct record.  
 

42 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
(Agenda No. 3) 
 
There were none.  

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



 

 

43 QUESTIONS FROM COUNTY COUNCILLORS  
(Agenda No. 4) 

 
There were none.  

 

44 PETITIONS AND PUBLIC ADDRESS  
(Agenda No. 5) 
 

There were none.  
 

45 ADOPTION OF ENTERPRISE OXFORDSHIRE ACCOUNTS 24/25  
(Agenda No. 6) 
 
The Chair introduced the item to the meeting and invited officers to make any points 

about the report in front of the Committee.  
 

It was confirmed that Enterprise Oxfordshire’s accounts had been fully audited and 
had been signed off by the Enterprise Oxfordshire Board on 27 November. It was 
explained that, if approved, the accounts would be submitted to Companies House 

before the end of December.  
 

The Shareholder Committee thanked officers for their work and agreed to the 
recommendations in the report.  
 
RESOLVED to:  
 

a) Approve the 2024/25 Enterprise Oxfordshire audited accounts 

 

 

 
 in the Chair 

  

Date of signing   

 

 
 
 

Page 8



 

SHAREHOLDER COMMITTEE  

24 February 2026 

ADOPTION OF ENTERPRISE OXFORDSHIRE'S BUSINESS 
PLAN FOR 2026/27   

Report by the Director of Economy and Place 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Shareholder Committee is RECOMMENDED to: 

a) Approve the 2026/27 Enterprise Oxfordshire Business Plan 

version 1 and indicative budget for 2027/28; and 

b) Note that a version 2 of the Business Plan will be developed 

following the Economic Strategy.  

 

Executive Summary 

2. Following the transfer of Local Enterprise Partnership functions to the Council on 1 
April 2024, the Council became the controlling member of the Oxfordshire Local 

Enterprise Partnership (OxLEP). At its meeting on 19 November 2024 the Cabinet 
established the Shareholder Committee to act as the sole member of Enterprise 

Oxfordshire, providing strategic oversight and taking those decisions which are 
reserved to the sole member of the company by the Articles of Association. 

3. Approval of the business plan is a Reserved Matter and therefore must be approved 
by the Shareholder Committee. 

4. Once the work on economic strategy commissioned by Oxfordshire County Council 

has concluded, a second version of the business plan will be developed to include 
any additional delivery required.  

Background 

5. In November 2024, Cabinet agreed to introduce new governance arrangements 

following the transfer of Local Enterprise Partnership functions to the Council on 1 

April 2024. These changes include the establishment of the Shareholder 

Committee as a Committee of Cabinet to take strategic oversight of Council owned 

entities. In the case of Enterprise Oxfordshire, it is the role of the Shareholder 

Committee to take decisions on any matters that are reserved to the Council as 

member in the company’s Articles of Association. 

6. This report sets out the Business Plan for 2026/27 and indicative budget for 2027/28, 

which was approved by the Enterprise Oxfordshire Board at its meeting on 29 

January 2026.  

 

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



 

Business Plan 

7. The Business Plan for April 2026-March 2027 describes Enterprise Oxfordshire’s 

current range of activities and service delivery functions, including investment 
facilitation, Connect to Work, Growth Hub, the Careers & Enterprise Company, 

Skills Bootcamps, Community Employment Plans and the Apprenticeship & Skills 

Levy. Many of these programmes are funded by central Government. Taken 

together, this package of activity plays an important role in supporting the 

county’s businesses and residents.   

8. A refreshed set of key performance indicators (KPIs) was developed during the 

company’s first year of operation as Enterprise Oxfordshire (2025/26) to track the 

performance of programme and wider business plan priorities, and these are 

included in the plan. The company is performing well against these KPIs, and a full 

review of these will take place with Enterprise Oxfordshire Board at the end of Q4 of 
the current year to ensure strategic and operational fit. 

9. The Business Plan seeks a two-year agreement on budgets for 2026/27 and 

indicative budget for 2027/28, which is necessary to demonstrate to auditors that the 

company is a going concern.   

10. In line with the development of the economic strategy, the Business Plan takes a 
pragmatic and iterative step to not only maintain an organisation with the capacity to 

deliver current programmes, but begins to build additional capability to deliver local 

priorities – particularly to support the delivery of the Oxfordshire Green Futures 

Green Finance programme; provide operational support for Equinox, the new 

innovation support initiative; and a centralised and improved inward investment 

function at Enterprise Oxfordshire, including a new Head of Investment and sector 

leads, which will also be responsible for building relationships with existing strategic 

employers in the county. There is broad support for this activity from across the 

county,  

11. This activity is in line with the company’s current remit and represents a modest 

increase in resources. To fund it, the plan proposes that the previously agreed 
savings target of £285,000 is reversed; that the £1.6m contribution from the 

Enterprise Zone agreed by Cabinet in March 2025 is drawn down in full 2026/27; 

and that the provision is extended to 2027/28. 

12. Looking ahead, work is underway with officers to identify priority interventions 

aligned with the economic strategy’s direction of travel, with a view to investing some 

of the funds committed for economic development by Cabinet in October 2025, 

where there is a clear strategic fit and economic benefit. Ultimately, this will need to 

be drawn together in a second version of the Business Plan, which will set out a clear 

vision, mission for Enterprise Oxfordshire in the context of the economic strategy will 

be prepared soon after the adoption of the economic strategy.  

 

Financial Implications 

13. There are no financial implications resulting from the decisions in this report. 

Comments checked by:  

Rob Finlayson, Strategic Finance Business Partner (E&H and E&P), 
(Rob.Finlayson@oxfordshire.gov.uk)  

Page 10

mailto:Rob.Finlayson@oxfordshire.gov.uk


 

Legal Implications 

14. Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership Limited, referred to in this report as Enterprise 
Oxfordshire is a company limited by guarantee of which the Council is the guarantor and 

sole member. The Shareholder Committee was constituted by Cabinet to manage the 
responsibilities of the Council as guarantor and sole member of Enterprise Oxfordshire.  

15. The company has registered its Memorandum and Articles of Association with 

Companies House. The Articles include several reserved matters which are to 

be decided/approved by the shareholder committee and cannot be the sole 
responsibility of the company. The reserved matters at 21.1.2 includes the 
responsibility to agree an annual business plan. 

Comments checked by:  

Jay Akbar – Head of Legal & Governance (Jay.Akbar@oxfordshire.gov.uk)  

 

Staff Implications 

16. There are no further staffing implications arising from this report.  

 

Equality & Inclusion Implications 

17. There are no further implications arising from this report.  

 

Robin Rogers 

Director of Economy and Place 

 

Background papers: Annex A – Enterprise Oxfordshire Business plan 2026/27 

Contact Officer: Nicholas Glover, Head of Future Economy 

 

 

February 2026  

Page 11

mailto:Jay.Akbar@oxfordshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

1 

 

Enterprise Oxfordshire 
Business Plan 2026-2027 V1 

Executive Summary 

Enterprise Oxfordshire (EO), an Oxfordshire County Council-owned company, aims to drive 

inclusive economic prosperity across Oxfordshire. This Business plan (v1) outlines EO's 

priorities for 2026-2027, focusing on business support, skills development, socio-economic 

inclusion, inward investment, and strategic programmes. It reflects anticipated change to come 

in governance, regional economic strategies, and signposts to EO growth ambitions to be 

further detailed in V2 of the 2025-26 Business Plan. 

Company Overview 

EO transitioned from OxLEP in 2025 and continues to operate supporting businesses across 

Oxfordshire - our services (some of which are Nationally funded) include: 

 Business Support – helping our small and medium enterprises (SMEs) and 

entrepreneurs to maximise their potential by offering a range of fully funded support for 

every stage of business, from start-up to growth.  

 Skills programmes – apprenticeship support; EO co-investment with the Careers & 

Enterprise Company to help every young person find their best next step; adult skills 

bootcamps in a range of sectors designed to help adults gain in demand skills and 

progress into sustainable employment with identified skills and labour shortages and 

labour market intelligence. 

 Socio-economic inclusion – Programmes include the Social Contract programme which 

was a £1.7 million programme of activity funded by the governments Contain Outbreak 

Management Fund via OCC. The aim was to address the impacts of the Covid-19 

pandemic related to the impacts of health and wellbeing through unemployment, barriers 

to employment, education and training. Enterprise Oxfordshire created a series of 

initiatives to help support those most impacted i.e. young people (aged 16-24 

years), minority ethnic communities, those furthest from the labour market and the over 

50s. Developed to address inequalities, provides intensive support to help remove 

barriers to socio-economic inclusion to some of our most marginalized, individuals, 

communities and to maximise apprenticeship levy retention locally. Also Connect to work 

-a voluntary programme funded by the UK Government delivered in partnership by OCC 

and EO (and third party contractors) to support people who find it hard to find and stay in 

work. It also provides support to people in work but who are at risk of losing their job. 

 Business representation – enabling the voice of Oxfordshire’s businesses to inform 

economic planning and economic strategy development  

Page 13



 
 

2 

 

 Delivery of OCC economic development objectives, providing strategic input to 

Oxfordshire wide strategies and policies, and management of Oxfordshire’s two 

Enterprise Zones 

 Inward Investment/Relocation and outbound Export/Trade for Oxfordshire Businesses.  

Managing the Oxford Calling digital investment promotion platform for local, national and 

global markets and sectors  

 Communications and promotion of EO activities 

Strategic Context 

The Oxfordshire economic landscape is evolving with devolution and the potential creation of a 

Mayoral Strategic Authority. EO will align its services with OCC's forthcoming Future Economic 

Strategy (Metrodynamics report) and emerging regional priorities, ensuring resilience and 

adaptability in a changing political and economic environment. 

Our Business Plan v1 for April 2026-March 2027 is thus presented as a draft to enable direction 

and associated CORE budgets for 2026/27 and indicative budget for 2027/28 to be agreed by 

EO Board (and then shareholders committee) to thus reduce any going concern risk.  (It is 

envisaged that this version will be updated as early as April/May 2026 to further detail 

expansion goals and new areas of delivery).  There are already some assumptions included in 

this draft and new posts are already identified that will be recruited to as early as March/April 

2026 to deliver against Oxon Green Futures Green Finance programme delivery, and backfilling 

of required EO roles. 

Organisational Structure 

During 2025/26, the first year of operation as Enterprise Oxfordshire, the organisation faced a 

number of resource changes including the CEO, Director of Business and Skills, and Director of 

Corporate Services leaving the company.  Two of which were unplanned.  A new leadership 

structure was promptly put in place and a team comprising a Head of Strategic Development 

and Programmes, Head of Business and Skills (these have since been re-titled as Director level 

roles in December 2025), a Head of Finance, and a Head of Corporate.  All these roles were 

filled internally.   

The Head of Business and Skills and Head of Strategic Development and Programmes then 

undertook a full reorganisation of employees.     Three redundancies were made as those posts 

were deemed not business critical.  Also, amendments to team structures were carried out to 

reduce silos and strengthen cross working.  Various posts were back-filled internally across 

Business and Skills and new posts have been recruited into across our wider programme 

activities (Connect to Work x3).   

The Strategic Development and Programmes functions are where we foresee growth, aligning 

with OCC’s emerging priorities and aspirations to support wider partners to deliver programmes 

and attract investment (working with Equinox).  This will be further detailed in a V2 of the 2026-

Page 14



 
 

3 

 

27 Business plan. There are some posts that are to be funded (subject to recruitment) within our 

approved core salary budget, and they are detailed later on. 

Current headcount is 23 core posts, with 10 additional programme-funded or fixed-term roles.  

The following chart highlights the strategic leadership team and their direct reports.   

 

Governance Review 

Operationally, the original governance as demonstrated by the diagram below shows the 

intention of the OCC Cabinet (as the “Shareholder Committee”) setting the strategic direction, 

aims and objectives for the company, as well as providing oversight of the company affairs and 

responsibility for Reserved Matters, business planning, budget setting, the appointment of 

company non-executive directors and external auditors.  The last year (2025) highlighted that a 

governance review is needed as the lack of EO board of Directors/Chairperson has led to 

issues with the company being able to make critical decisions.  Also, as the Metrodynamics 

review continues, and OCC strategic economic objectives are finalised this is expected to 

further influence EO activity from April 2026 at the earliest.   

 

Page 15



 
 

4 

 

 
 
Other operational decisions, timeframes, the role of the OEPB, and being able to be ‘more fleet 

of foot’ in delivery has also been highlighted over the year and thus a governance review is 

proposed and will be led by our Managing Director and newly appointed Board Directors, in 

parallel with recruiting to the position of Chairperson.  

Financial Plan 

EO's financial strategy includes maintaining reserves at approximately £1.0m, leveraging 

Enterprise Zone retained business rates, and managing external funding for key programmes. 

Core operational budgets and programme forecasts for 2026/27 and 2027/28 are included 

below. 

 

2026/27 Payroll Budget: Review and Implications 

A review of the 2026/27 core payroll budgets confirms that the planned timing for both backfill 

and some growth appointments is financially sustainable within the current £1,811k approved 

payroll. The approved core budget includes a drawdown of £1.6m from EZ funding together with 

a drawdown from reserves of £344k for financial year 2026/27 (and assumed similar for 

2027/28). This assessment ensures EO can maintain operational continuity while investing in 

strategic growth roles.  

Back fill posts: 

 Continuation of Interim Managing Director (April – to July 26)): 2 days/week  

 Managing Director (likely from May/June 2026 onwards) 

 Strategic Careers Hub Lead 

Identified growth posts to recruit to and hopefully start from April 2026 include: 

 1 x Head of Investment & Programmes 

Page 16



 
 

5 

 

 1 x Business Development Executive (sector lead)  

 1 x Events & Communications Executive 

Third party funded posts: 

 1 x Business Development Executive (sector lead for Clean Tech and Low Carbon who 

will be third party financed via OCC Green Finance programme and has no impact on 

our budget/forecasts). 

2026/27 Third-Party Budgets and Financial Performance 

The Finance Team’s outturn report to the end of September 2025 projects a slightly improved 

forecast financial position for financial year 2025/26.  The forecast currently assumes a £344k 

drawdown from reserves. The forecast is reviewed quarterly and the forecast updated. It is 

worth mentioning that for the financial year 2024/25 the original forecast required a drawdown 

from reserves of £344k but with careful and prudent purchasing and additional income streams 

and final year-end adjustments we returned £120k back to reserves to fund future operational 

costs.  

2026/27 Payroll Budget: Growth Strategy and Affordability 

The 2026/27 budget planning reflects a strategic shift from cost-saving to growth. The 

previously budgeted savings target of £285.9k has been replaced by a growth plan, made 

possible by drawing down the full allocation of £1.6m from Enterprise Zone 1 (EZ1) retained 

business rates (RBR) growth fund, already approved by OCC’s Cabinet. The next version of the 

2026/27 Business plan will build upon this revised perspective.   This planned approach allows 

our reserves balance to be maintained at ~£1.0m, providing a level of working capital flexibility, 

and operating contingency in the event of unforeseen shocks.    

The following table sets out our draft core operational budgets for 2026/27 and proposed 

indicative core budgets for 2027/28 at the same level of EZ1 drawdown.   

Page 17



 
 

6 

 

 

Financial assumptions 

The following assumptions underpin the figures presented in the table above in the previous 

sections: 

 During 2026/27 we plan to review service delivery priorities with our board and the 

shareholder committee recognising that future priorities will be determined by the 

outcomes of the Metrodynamics economic development functions review. This will result 

in a V2 of the 2026-27 Business Plan being presented for approval within the next few 

months. 

 Permanent MD salary capped at £125k per annum (no bonus), 

 Head of Finance will move to part-time (75%) from April 2026, 

 Subject to board approval, we are looking to allow a 3% cost of living pay award for 

eligible staff in 2026/27. 

 

Service Areas & Priorities 

EO’s aim is to provide the talent capacity and capability to leverage external funding 

opportunities that will positively impact Oxfordshire’s key economic development ambitions.  To 

achieve this, we maintain a core economic development capability for: 

- Strategic leadership and development 

- Relationship management 

- Collaboration and opportunity facilitation 

- Service and programme design, management and delivery 

Alongside delivery of our key functions delivering business support (including supporting SMEs 

to transition to net zero, revitalising high streets); expanding skills provision (apprenticeships, 

£k pa £k pa £k pa £k pa £k pa £k pa

Income

Core Service Funding

EZ1 Funding 1,600.00 1,600.00

DBaT Business Support Funding 261.00 302.00

CEC Skills Hub Funding 150.00 180.00

Apprenticeship Awards Sponsorship 10.00 10.00

2,021.00 2,092.00

Drawdown from Reserves 344.30 344.10

Total Core Funding activity 2,365.30 2,436.10

Expenditure

Staffing 1,848.90 1,904.30

3rd Party Costs 516.40 531.80

Total Expediture 2,365.30 2,436.10

Experience Oxfordshire Business Plan 2026/2027 Draft Core forecasts for 2026/2027 Draft Core forecasts for 2027/2028

Page 18



 
 

7 

 

school support (including CEPs, Apprenticeship Levy), delivering programmes such as Connect 

to Work); attracting inward investment and promoting Oxfordshire globally all of which utlilise 

our inhouse Communications and PR team. 

 

Service area – Business and Skills:  the company reorganisation which began in March 2025 

has led to Business and Skills being closer aligned under the direction of a Director of Business 

and Skills.  

Business support: overarching aim - providing a range of business support to help our SME’s 

to accelerate transition to net zero, supporting a more diverse range of businesses to start-up, 

grow, thrive and innovate so they continue to contribute to and share the benefits of 

Oxfordshire’s economy 

 

Our current core offer is: 

Triage in excess of 1000 businesses through the EO  business support tool and support in 

excess of 900  Oxfordshire  local businesses and partners for environmental, economic, and 

social benefit through the delivery of; 

 30 Business focused webinars annually covering areas such as transition to net zero, 
winning new contracts (including public sector), innovation and accessing new markets 

 3 Start up bootcamps annually  
 3 Foundations to Growth cohorts annually 

 Develop an unemployment programme for anticipated closure and mass redundancy such 
as Fortescue. 

 Manage a client base of c4500 businesses signposting to funding opportunities, networking, 
new programmes and support. 
 

Also to work towards aligning the Oxfordshire Business & Intellectual Property Centre (BIPC) 

(which will be managed by the Future Economy team at OCC) with EO’s Business support 

function, building on successful programmes, simplifying support available, maximising capacity 

and reducing duplication to present a single point of entry for SMEs wishing to know about 

Business Support and connection into Oxfordshire’s innovation ecosystem.  

Continue to lead and facilitate bi-monthly Joint Oxfordshire Business Support (JOBS) group 

meetings that brings together EDO’s and other key economic development stakeholders to 

maximise engagement, collaboration and co-ordination of business support activities across the 

area. 

 

Skills; overarching aim - supporting our communities, employers and training providers to build 

and maintain the skilled workforce that Oxfordshire’s employers need today and into the future. 

Page 19

https://oxlepbusiness.co.uk/business-support-tool/


 
 

8 

 

We have the capability to respond to any potential devolution opportunities working with 

partners to maximise impact. 

Our current service offer is: 

Deliver our co-invested Careers & Enterprise Company Careers Hub focusing on: 

 Skills for young people - Supporting young people to understand workplace skills and 
the different pathways to rewarding careers e.g. Apprenticeships 

 Skills for schools and colleges - Connecting educators to local businesses and their 
skills needs through our national network of Careers Hubs 

 Skills for the economy - Supporting employers to close skills gaps and shape their future 
workforce through high quality education outreach 
 

Develop and improve our labour market intelligence to support employers, training providers, 

communities and investors to make informed decisions based on labour market data, trends 

and job demand.  It is assumed an additional resource is required to deliver and will feature in 

v2. 

Maximise the take up of apprenticeships building on Oxfordshire Apprenticeships track record of 

delivery – including the annual Oxfordshire Apprenticeships Awards and ongoing promotion of 

apprenticeships as a quality career option. Focus support to increase take up of apprenticeships 

but more importantly completions which is currently seeing a decline. 

Optimise the community benefit of major development through supporting EDOs across the 

County in the delivery of Community Employment Plans (CEPs), providing local people with to 

access job and training alongside wider business and procurement opportunities – at both 

development and end use phases as appropriate (subject to funding confirmation). 

Deliver ‘Wave 6 Skills Bootcamp programme that will deliver more than 200 new (mainly level 3) 

qualifications in sectors such as construction, digital and AI, Cyber Security, transport and 

logistics health & life sciences, and green skills.  Funding for wave 7 has been confirmed at £1.5 

million. Contracting etc is underway.  Wave 8 is anticipated.  

Develop an unemployment programme to support anticipated closure and mass redundancy 
such as Fortescue. 
 
Regarding our previously delivered Social Contract programme, we aim to continue to deliver on 

maximizing apprenticeship levy retention held locally. The current position is £6.2 million 

retained in Oxfordshire over the last 3.5 years, with a revised annual KPI of £1.3 million per year 

moving forward. Prudent budget management has seen the programme extended multiple times 

within the original budget allocation – now topped up by piecemeal SPF allocations from each 

district.  Moving forward this activity will be funded through Bootcamp at its current staffing level 

of 1 FTE. 

Page 20



 
 

9 

 

We have an established, well-regarded team that has built up the trust of the communities it 

serves, which takes significant time. Continuity is key, for our communities, that the programme 

supports, but also operationally to avoid loss of expertise that has been developed over time. 

Work with wider partners including District Councils colleagues on developing the refreshed 

regional Local Skills Investment Plans (LSIPs) alongside reinvigorating Oxfordshire (and 

regional) relationships and impacts. 

 

Service area – Strategic Development & Programmes: overarching aim – support OCC 

teams and external partners in the creation, implementation and oversight of economic 

strategies, investment and sectoral programmes aligned to Oxfordshire’s shared ambitions and 

priorities, attract businesses and investment into Oxfordshire, and ensure marketing and 

promotion of all of EO activities via our in-house Communications team. 

Our current service offer is: 

Strategic Development & Programmes: 

Support the delivery of the emerging Future Oxfordshire Economic Development Strategy 

(Metrodynamics report) priorities, aligning to HMGs Modern Industrial Strategy/future Local 

Growth Plan initiatives. 

 Lead/support the development and ongoing management of Oxfordshire wide strategies 
and programmes relevant to EO (OXIS, Oxford Growth Commission, Oxfordshire’s 
planned strategic planning framework, LAEPs etc) 

 Support delivery of Oxfordshire Green Futures Phase 2 – look to employ a Sector Lead 
for Clean Energy/Green Economy (24 month contract initially), working with OCC teams 
and Oxfordshire LNP teams in furthering the green pipeline of investable opportunities 

 Work with both of Oxfordshire’s Local Visitor Economy Partnerships, to keep momentum 
for Oxfordshire’s Destination Management Plan priorities. 

 Support OCC who now have responsibility for ensuring the remaining major capital 
programmes (LGF, GBF) projects complete their targets to 2030.  

 Ongoing management of Oxfordshire’s two Enterprise Zones. For 2026 onwards to 
include redefining roles and responsibilities (and MOUs) for key partners 
(EO/OCC/South & Vale DCs) and development of detailed business cases with regards 
already approved additional draw down for EO (c£450k).  Also, development of the first 
Investment Plan for available EZ funds (forecasted as EZ1 £83.666m/EZ 2 £142.109m) 
of retained business rates (RBR) to continue to fund EO Core services, and further 
economic development priorities across the County area (EZ1 runs to 2038; EZ2 to 2041 
providing consistent and stable revenue funding over the mid to long term) 

 Continue wider regional engagement (ie via the Ox Cam Growth Corridor) and where 
appropriate for EO wider “whole system” stakeholder management 

 

Inward Investment; supporting existing businesses to access new markets and maximise the 

benefits for communities from new overseas investments into the area 

Page 21



 
 

10 

 

Our service offer: 

 Grow the operational element of an Inward Investment function for Oxfordshire, working 
with key partners such as Equinox (currently seen as a new ‘front door’ for the county), 
Oxfordshire Developers Forum and others.  Aim to secure 3 new f/t staff including a 
manager to fully develop the offer and initially 2 new sector leads (one separately funded 
by OCC Green Finance Programme to specifically focus on Cleantech and Low Carbon). 

 Continue working closely with Office for Investment (OfI) and local partners to secure 
strategic pipeline enquiries to secure a minimum of 25 successes annually from at least 
30 inward investment enquiries that create and/or safeguard 350 jobs.  

 Develop a new International Inward Investment strategy that aligns nationally to HMGs 
Modern Industrial Strategy and locally to priorities such as skills, job creation, improved 
productivity and living standards for residents 

 Maximise Oxfordshire’s Global visibility, Sectoral Strengths and Innovation Ecosystem 
by working with Equinox, and building on EO’s platform Oxford Calling and aligning with 
OCC’s Oxfordshire Story. 

 Maintain and enhance commercial partner relationships; collaborate with key 
developers, business and science parks and commercial property agents - keeping 
abreast of the local property market to provide up-to-date advice and identify locations 
for investors to establish new operations in Oxfordshire – further embedding the team 
Oxfordshire approach  

 Develop our data and evidence base on businesses and sectors, including creation of an 
account management programme  

 Develop a forward plan and host sector focused roundtables, attend key economic 
development/ property events (i.e. UKReiif etc) - all subject to availability of budgets. 

 

Communications: overarching aim; ensuring our key messaging and priorities are accessible 

to a wide range of stakeholders and partners and supporting programmes to ensure successful 

delivery alongside being the voice for business in Oxfordshire.  

All strategic and operational delivery requires appropriate levels of communication support to 
drive customers to our core offers, to generate interest in activity and engagement/ awareness 
of new priorities or programmes such as community wealth building or generating business 
focused messaging to amplify the voice of business in ongoing economic strategy and policy 
development.  
 
Our communications team provides a dedicated, responsive and experienced function that 

supports our business plan priorities, the delivery of funded programmes, business 

engagement, stakeholder engagement, events, social media, web-based communications and 

international marketing. It is a vital, Business to Business as well as customer facing function 

that provides a range of services to support our teams, and wider stakeholders. It is a small core 

team who deliver strategic and tactical communications, print/digital content creation, marketing 

and campaigns, media engagement, stakeholder management and events delivery locally and 

nationally.  They also work with the OCC communications teams and have in place operational 

protocols that allow for our ‘arms-length’ status whilst ensuring that OCC can contribute to 

communications and key messaging is thus landed as appropriate.  

Page 22



 
 

11 

 

The year 2025/26 following becoming EO we looked to bring more of the functions in-house 

which enabled a reduction in costs for external support. This approach is under review as the 

programmes and service areas look to grow as the current core funded internal team is small. 

One area which we are looking to gain external support is to raise EO’s profile and reposition as 

both an OCC owned organisation but aligned to emerging new priorities and expanded service 

areas. We have also costed in a new post to help with events and roundtables going forward. 

A key ongoing role for the comms team is to ensure the voice of local business is fully 

represented- including embracing business representative organisations (BROs) – i.e. 

Chambers, IoD, FSB, Advanced Oxford, and B4. Each of these BROs have been engaged with 

our activities at differing levels for several years and we have strong relationships with each 

thus garnering business views from multiple channels which also includes our internal channels: 

 Via our Business support tool (c3000 unique SME users) which provides data and intel 
on key issues and challenges that matter to our businesses  

 Extending our business intelligence reporting drawn from local stakeholders, 
businesses, Local Authority Economic Development Officer network, BRO’s, 
professional trade press, social media and sector intelligence at local/regional level 

 Via our series of workshops, networks, events and webinars we deliver (> 100 annually 
with more than 1000 businesses engaged)  

 

Activity Average attendance Frequency 

Marketplace and Awards  c180 Annual 

OxBoost 25 Bi-Monthly 

Women in Business 35-50 5-6 per year 

International Women’s day c80 Annual 

Events/workshops 15-35 per event Approx 10 per month 

WODC SPF (1 joint 
programme across the 2 
districts) 

54 Ongoing to 31/1/26 

Cherwell SPF (1 joint 
programme across the 2 
districts) 

61 Ongoing to 31/1/26 

      

BST completions 591 1st April 2025-31st Dec 2025 

Overall number of 
businesses supported 

1476 1st April 2025-31st Dec 2025 

Hours of support workshops 
and webinars 

2443 1st April 2025-31st Dec 2025 

Hours of one-to-one support 383 1st April 2025-31st Dec 2025 

Overall total (hours and one 
to one support) 

2826 1st April 2025-31st Dec 2025 

 

 

Page 23



 
 

12 

 

  

Page 24



 
 

13 

 

KPIs & Success Measures 

Performance will be monitored through established KPIs aligned with Board oversight and 

government reporting requirements. Metrics include business engagement, skills outcomes, 

inward investment successes, and communications indicators. 

All of EO KPI’s were updated for 2025/26 when we began operating as EO. These will be 

reviewed both operationally and strategically by our board following the end of Q4. If required, 

they will be modified for 2026/27 taking into account any amendments in service areas 

delivered, and review at the end of Q4.  Currently they are all listed below: 

 

 Target 
Invest Team  
Number of inward investment enquiries 30 

Number of investment wins (involved UK/FDI) 25 
Number of jobs supported / safeguarded 350 
Careers Hub   
60 schools and colleges in the Careers Hub 60 

300 employers engaged with the Careers Hub 300 
Increase the number of SMEs that engage with the Careers Hub 100 

Schools with above average number of children on Free School Meals (FSM) 
to be meeting on average the same or more Gatsby Benchmarks than others 

6 

Community Employment Plans  

Number of enterprises that have received non-financial support with the 
intention of improving performance 

10 

Number of local events or activities supported 20 

The number of new, permanent, paid, full-time equivalent (FTE) jobs created 
following support 

20 

Connect to Work  

Strong employer engagement and effective use of referrer networks.  
Maximise limited budget through efficient resource use.  

Individual Placement Support fidelity assurance and adherence to SOPs.  
Growth Hub / Business Support  

Number of jobs created in supported enterprises 40 
Number of jobs safeguarded in supported enterprises 300 

Number of businesses supported 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1250 

Comms Team  

Page 25



 
 

14 

 

Media coverage:  
  
Ensure at least 75% of media coverage achieved in each quarter records at 
least one predefined campaign/story key message.  
 

75% 

Business support tool:  
  
Drive at least 1,250 individual users per quarter to the business support tool 
landing page on  EO Business website.  
 

1250 

E-newsletter engagement:  
  
Average at least a 45% open rate for e-newsletters sent to our Evolutive 
database each quarter.  
 

45% 

Social media engagement:  
  
Average at least a 7% engagement rate per quarter for content produced 
across all EO social media channels.  
 

7% 

Effectiveness of search engines regarding the EO brand:  
  
Ensure that least 17.5% of all traffic landing on the EO Business site is driven 
by ‘organic search’ i.e. our sites are accessed via an online user’s search 
phrase, meaning our content is judged as highly relevant).  
 

17.5% 

 

 

 

Page 26


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	6 Approval of 2026/27 Enterprise Oxfordshire Business Plan
	SC240226 - Adoption of EO Business Plan 2026-27 (Annex 1)


